




MAJOR STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PERMIT  
CASE NO. 2023-26 

 
APPLICANT/OWNER: BRIDGET E. CAHILL 

PROPERTY: 500 RUN HILL ROAD 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

Town of Brewster 
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 x. 1133 

 
     

STAFF REPORT 
TO: Planning Board 
FROM: Jon Idman, Town Planner 
RE:  Major Stormwater Permit SWMP23-26 

Run Hill Road (Map 33 Parcel 40) 
Applicant, Cahill/ Caldwell  
c/o John M. O’Reilly, PE, PLS, JM O’Reilly & Associates, Inc. 

DATE:  July 5, 2023 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Recommendation 
The stormwater permit application meets the applicable performance standards and submission 
requirements set out in the town’s Stormwater Management Regulations for issuance and approval of a 
Major Stormwater Permit. 
 
Approval should be granted subject to the continuing obligations set out in said Regulations, including 
Sections 5.7, 5.8, 5.9 (Certificates of Compliance), 6.1B (Construction practices), Section 7.2 
(Inspections), 8.3 (Recording of stormwater permit and O&M plan) and 8.5 therein. 
 
Major Stormwater Management Permit 
This project triggers a Stormwater Permit under Chapter 272 of the Brewster Code (Stormwater 
Management Bylaw) and according to Section 4 of the Bylaw’s supporting regulations, a Major 
Stormwater Permit is required because the project involves net new impervious surface of 2500 sq ft or 
greater.  The underlying project is an addition to the existing single-family residential dwelling, along 
with supporting appurtenances like a gravel driveway extension/ turn-around.   
 
Though the western portion of the property fronts on Upper Mill Pond, the project is located 300’+ from 
the pond and is located entirely outside wetlands jurisdiction.  No portion of the project is located in a 
special flood hazard area.  The property is not located in a Zone II or the DCPC.   
 
Because the development project, including the stormwater management system and limit of work, is not 
located within wetlands jurisdiction, the Planning Board is the stormwater permitting authority.  Major 
Stormwater Permits are subject to review at a public meeting, including for any waivers requested.   
 
The Applicant has requested a waiver to the extent deemed necessary or applicable regarding water 
quality treatment requirements from the Regulations.  I agree with the Applicant, as stated in the 
submission, that a waiver request is unnecessary and that the stormwater system meets TSS and TP 
treatment requirements by virtue of the holding capacity of the natural basin, and the naturally vegetated 
nature of the basin and the path of its overland flow.   
 
To the extent the Board feels that a waiver request is necessary or applicable, my opinion is that the 
stormwater system meets the waiver criteria in Section 5.10 of the Regulations, being consistent with, and 
sufficiently protective of the resources intended to be protected under, the Bylaw.  A structured/ 
engineered solution, for which treatment values are more easily calculated, is unnecessary or 
impracticable.  Use of the natural basin on the property allows a smaller development footprint and less 
disturbance of the existing natural features of the site. 

Office of: 

Planning Board 

Planning Dept. 
 

 



2 
 

 
The Applicant has provided the required application materials for a Major Stormwater Permit as set out in 
Appendix B of the Stormwater Management Regulations, including a site plan (dated 6/12/23) and 
Stormwater Management and Hydrologic Report (revised dated 7/3/23).  
 
The Applicant has provided construction-period BMPs consistent with the performance standards for 
Major Stormwater Permits set out in Section 6.1B of the Stormwater Management Regulations.  Plan 
elements include straw wattles around the limit of work.   
 
The post-construction stormwater management system for the project involves piping roof run-off, and 
directing run-off from the new gravel driveway extension, to a rip-rap splash pad which then flows to a 
natural basin at the front/ eastern portion of the site for collection, treatment and infiltration/ recharge.  
The natural basin is proposed to be used as-is and not graded, altered or developed.  The natural basin 
currently functions in the same manner as proposed, which also currently intercepts run-off from the 
property’s frontage on Run Hill Road.   
 
These post-construction BMPs are consistent with the Major Stormwater Permits performance standards 
for new construction set out in Section 6.2B and Section 8.2 of the Stormwater Management Regulations: 

 The system meets the applicable standards in the Massachusetts Stormwater Handbook for 
redevelopment. 

 The system was designed under post-development conditions to maintain recharge capacity on-
site for the 2, 10, 25 and 100-year storm events.  

 As designed, post-development runoff rates are reduced over pre-development conditions 
including for the 100-year storm. 

 The Applicant has provided a corresponding Operations and Maintenance Manual, which 
adequately addresses the long-term maintenance of the post-construction BMPs.   

 The system incorporates Low Impact Development-type (LID) stormwater design elements, 
specifically the natural basin.  

 In addition to the MA handbook stormwater standards, the system meets the TSS and total 
Phosphorus treatment requirements (TSS) set out in the Regulations for redevelopment, on the 
basis of the water quality volume/ holding capacity and the natural vegetated character of the 
natural basin. 

 The system is designed to hold and treat the ‘first flush’ of stormwater volume for the 100 yr 
storm.   

 The Applicant’s soil tests on the property, and NRCS mapping, have revealed well-draining soils. 
 There is significant separation from stormwater facilities and the groundwater table. 











































APPROVAL NOT REQUIRED CASE NO. 2023-06 

 
APPLICANT/OWNER: EASTWARD COMPANIES BUSINESS TRUST 

PROPERTY: MAIN STREET 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
 

Date: July 5, 2023 
To: Planning Board  
From: Jon Idman, Town Planner 
Re: Approval Not Required Plan Endorsement: PB#2023-06  

Eastward Companies, Main Street and Vesper Pond Drive (Map 138 Pcls 74 through 81) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Vote to endorse the plan entitled “Plan of Land at Lots 1 through 8, Plan Book 612, Page 9, Brewster 
Massachusetts as surveyed and prepared for Eastward Companies Business Trust,” made by J.M. 
O’Reilly & Associates, Inc., dated and stamped July 5, 2023 by John M. O’Reilly, PE, PLS 2/15/2023, as 
it does not depict a subdivision and thus does not require approval under the subdivision control law. 
 
Discussion 
Owner/ applicant Eastward Companies Business Trust has submitted a plan of land to the Board for 
endorsement which shows a re-division of the land shown on the plan into three lots, Lots A, B and C (it 
is stated in the plan notes that the lots are for single family residential use).  The prior plan of record had 
divided the land into eight lots (presumably for commercial use).  The plan submitted to the Board is 
styled as an “Approval Not Required” (ANR) plan per MGL Ch. 41 ss. 81L & 81P and Section 290-4 of 
the Brewster Subdivision Rules and Regulations; the applicant maintains that no subdivision approval is 
required for the land division because the plan does not depict a ‘subdivision’ as defined under the 
subdivision control law, and requests endorsement of the same.   
 
In the case at hand, the proposed land division is not a subdivision so-defined and an ANR endorsement is 
warranted because each of the three proposed lots has the frontage as required under the Brewster Zoning 
Bylaw for the VB District on Main Street, an improved public way, or Vesper Pond Drive, an improved 
way approved under the subdivision control law in which the owner/ applicant is believed to have rights.    
 
Though the three proposed lots appear to meet all minimum dimensional requirements for new single 
family residential building lots (the land is vacant and undeveloped), the Board’s endorsement does not 
itself imply zoning compliance (other than as to frontage) or represent the zoning buildability of the lots; 
these zoning issues are beyond the scope and authority of the Board under a request for ANR 
endorsement.  Further, it appears that there are wetlands that might affect the development of the land, but 
such issue is not within the purview of the Board under a request for ANR endorsement as the wetlands 
would not appear to prohibit basic access to the lots for building purposes. 
 

 

Town Of Brewster 
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, Massachusetts 02631-1898 
(508) 896-3701 x1150  

                                           

 

Office of: 
Planning Department 

 

 
 

















































 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES DATED JUNE 28, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
PB Minutes 06/28/23                               Page 1 of 7 

 

Brewster Planning Board 

2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 

(508) 896-3701 x1133 
brewplan@brewster-ma.gov 

MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, June 28, 2023 at 6:30 pm 

 Brewster Town Office Building  
 

Chair Amanda Bebrin convened a meeting of the Planning Board at 6:30 pm with the following members participating: 
Charlotte Degen, Tony Freitas, Madalyn Hillis-Dineen, Rob Michaels, Elizabeth Taylor, and Alex Wentworth (remotely).  
Also participating: Jon Idman, Town Planner, and Lynn St. Cyr, Senior Department Assistant.  Bebrin declared that a 
quorum of the Planning Board was present.  She read the Meeting Participation Statement and Recording Statement. 
 
6:32 PM PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMENT 
No citizen comments. 
 
6:33 PM PLANNING DISCUSSION 
Planning Board Committee Assignments. 
The Planning Board discussed nominations for recommendations to the Select Board for Planning Board appointments 
to the Water Quality Review Committee and Community Preservation Committee.  Michaels agreed to continue as the 
Planning Board’s representative to the Water Quality Review Committee.  Motion by Degen to Nominate Rob Michaels 
as the Planning Board Member Recommended to the Select Board for Appointment to the Water Quality Review 
Committee.  Second by Freitas. Roll call vote: Wentworth-yes; Michaels-yes; Degen-yes; Hillis-Dineen-yes; Freitas-yes; 
Taylor-yes; and Bebrin-yes.  Vote: 7-0-0. 
 
Taylor agreed to continue as the Planning Board’s representative to the Community Preservation Committee.  Motion 
by Hillis-Dineen to Nominate Elizabeth Taylor as the Planning Board Member Recommended to the Select Board for 
Appointment to the Community Preservation Committee. Second by Degen.  Roll call vote: Wentworth-yes; Michaels-
yes; Degen-yes; Hillis-Dineen-yes; Freitas-yes; Taylor-yes; and Bebrin-yes.  Vote: 7-0-0. 
 
6:35 PM PUBLIC MEETING 
Public listening session on accessory dwelling units. 
Documents: 

 06/28/23 ADU Listening Session slide presentation 

 Information received from Cynthia Stead regarding universal design 
 
Donna Kalinick, Assistant Town Manager and Jill Scalise, Housing Coordinator were present and participated in the 
discussion. 
 
Bebrin outlined the structure of the listening session.  Bebrin stated that she filed a disclosure with the Town Clerk.  She 
stated that she works at the Community Development Partnership (CDP) and part of their mission is to encourage towns 
to promote pro-housing strategies and policies.  She further stated that she believes she can participate in this process 
fairly and equitably.   
 
Idman began the presentation stating that an ADU is an accessory single-family dwelling unit regulated by zoning.  It is 
not independent but an accessory use to the main home. An ADU is described as having self-contained living (cooking, 
sanitary, sleeping) facilities.  THE ADU is located on the same lot as the main dwelling.  Idman reviewed the existing 
zoning for ADUs including size requirements (40% of main home or 900 SF), an ADU can be attached, detached or within 

Approved:  

Vote:  



 

 
PB Minutes 06/28/23                               Page 2 of 7 

 

the main dwelling, year-round owner occupancy is required, a 12-month lease is required, additional parking spaces are 
required, and no more than two bedrooms are allowed.  Under Brewster zoning, a maximum of two dwelling units, 
including the ADU, are allowed per lot.  There is an annual ADU/ACDU permit cap of 20.  Other provisions of the ADU 
section of the zoning bylaw include that no boarding/lodging is allowed, the ADU design must be subordinate to the 
main house, and ZBA approval is required in water protection overlay districts and on lots less than 30,000 SF. 
 
Idman reviewed typical considerations in ADU zoning bylaws including a purpose clause, owner occupancy, tenancy, lot 
size/dimensional regulations, ADU size, design requirements, special permit requirements, enforcement/administration, 
annual permit cap, and reference to related laws and regulations such as health and building.  Idman noted that 
Brewster’s current ADU zoning does not include a purpose clause.  There is an implied purpose that ADUs are intended 
to bolster year-round housing.  Idman asked for comments from the Planning Board and public on a purpose statement.   
 
Degen stated that it made sense to include a purpose statement in ADU zoning.  Degen suggested the purpose 
statement would be to provide year-round housing as is clearly needed.  Michaels asked the Planning Board to focus on 
the problem that ADUs were intended to help solve and create a purpose statement based on the problem.   He asked 
the Planning Board to consider whether the problem was year-round housing, increased density, or generational 
transition. 
 
Kalinick stated that the Select Board has begun a review of their policies and they are intentionally adding purpose 
statements to policies that do not currently have them.  She thought it was a good idea that the ADU provisions include 
a purpose statement and suggested that the statement include increasing year-round housing choices. 
 
Cynthia Stead, an employee of Catholic Charities and an elected housing commissioner in the Town of Dennis, spoke 
about universal design in ADUs.  She provided the Planning Board with information on universal design.  She stated she 
looked at census data on Brewster and older women are a large cohort in town although standard units do not 
necessarily work for them and need to be retrofitted.  Stead stated that one purpose of the ADU bylaw is to create 
housing stock that benefits all people.  She suggested that incentives such as abatements could be given so those 
building ADUs to a universal design that would be accessible to more people.  Stead discussed the history of the Dennis 
ADU bylaw. 
 
Freitas stated that the purpose of ADUs should also be to help people stay in their homes.  ADUs can be designed to be 
more accessible than the main home could provide a homeowner with financial support. 
 
Fran Manion, Lower Road, stated that she believed the purpose statement should reference the Housing Production 
Plan.  It is a plan that includes goals and strategies for housing and references ADUs.  She stated that experts worked on 
the plan and have stated that ADUs are good for Brewster. 
 
The Planning Board reviewed current owner occupancy requirements including that the owner must occupy one of the 
two dwellings for a continuous 12-month period.  There is no express bona fide absence clause.  Part time residents 
cannot have an ADU.  Freitas asked what the requirements are for residents to vote at the Town Meeting and Kalinick 
responded that residents must be registered to vote in Brewster and therefore Brewster must be their primary 
residence.  Kalinick stated that this requirement gives up an opportunity for some year-round housing.  Kalinick stated 
that 42% of dwelling units in Brewster are not year-round.  She stated she believed the intention of the owner 
occupancy requirement was to discourage short-term rentals.  Hillis-Dineen stated that one of the units should be 
occupied year-round.  She suggested owner occupancy for 10 months.   
 
Talitha Abramsen of the Community Development Partnership’s ADU Resource Center stated that owner occupancy is a 
hurdle she sees in creating ADUs.  She mentioned that owner occupancy requirements have been lessened or eliminated 
in the West where more development is occurring.  There are not short-term rental issues like there are here.  
Abramsen stated that there is one town on Cape Cod in which you can rent one unit for twelve months and rent the 



 

 
PB Minutes 06/28/23                               Page 3 of 7 

 

other unit on a short-term basis.  She stated that it is common that 40% of properties in a town on the Cape are not 
year-round and housing opportunities are being missed.  She recognized that there could be monitoring issues and 
neighborhood issues. 
 
Michaels stated that the Brewster Association of Part Time Residents is a group the Planning Board may want to reach 
out to for feedback.  Scalise stated that she has received inquiries from part-time Brewster residents interested in having 
an ADU on their property.  She has also heard from residents who are not here year-round who would like to have 
someone stay at their property when they are not there to watch over the property.  Wentworth stated that eliminating 
the owner occupancy requirement may allow for more short-term rentals.  Idman stated that there was the possibility of 
creating safeguards through special permit requirements.  Special permits could be required for part-time residents to 
have an ADU or could be used to allow year-round rental of both the ADU and main home on a property. 
 
The Planning Board discussed tenancy requirements.  Bebrin stated that currently ADU zoning requires a 12-month 
lease.  She asked whether a 12-month lease equaled year-round housing.  Idman asked the Planning Board to consider 
whether year-round round housing equals one tenancy for one person for 12 months.  Idman stated in Harwich ADUs 
must be used as year-round housing, but a minimum of a 6-month lease is required.  Michaels stated that a 6-month 
lease may be more inclusive and could help provide workforce housing.  Freitas stated that the bylaw needs to be 
flexible not punitive.  If a property owner is not able to secure a 12-month lease it should not mean that an ADU is not 
possible.  Hillis-Dineen expressed concern that changes to these provisions would create investment properties not 
affordable ADUs. 
 
Rick Draper, 288 Whiffletree Avenue, stated that he believed one of the two units on the property should be occupied 
year-round but that a 12-month lease was not necessary.  He suggested a provision that the ADU be rented for an 
extended period of not less than three months to avoid short-term rentals.  Michaels agreed with Draper and stated that 
he believed the 12-month lease period was put in the bylaw to deter short-term rentals.  Wentworth also agreed and 
stated that reducing the lease to 6 months would not have a negative impact on the bylaw and would help to prevent 
short-term rentals.  Abramsen stated that she is aware of a bylaw in Colorado which uses a different tenancy model that 
allows for rentals by students and workers.  She will provide more information on this model. 
 
Freitas stated that short-term rental properties are required to be registered through the state.  There is a database 
available of these registered properties that Brewster could access to see if an ADU was being used as a short-term 
rental.  Kalinick responded to comments by Freitas stating that the town does have the ability to access the DOR 
database.    She also stated that the purpose of the 12-month lease when the bylaw was drafted in 2018 was to provide 
year-round housing.  Kalinick liked the idea of shorter-term leases but tying them to other requirements such as work or 
school terms.  She also noted a problem in Brewster in which people have short-term leases and are asked to leave the 
rental in the summer so even more people are looking for housing during that time. Kalinick stated that the ADU 
provisions should consider all scenarios and must not be so restrictive that people do not want to create ADUs. 
 
Freitas asked Scalise for clarification on homes available for ADU rentals and how many were winterized.  Scalise 
clarified that 42% of homes in Brewster are seasonal or used on a part-time basis according to 2020 census data.  She 
will look further to see if the data provides information on available winterized homes.  Scalise stated that a purpose 
statement was provided in 2018 as part of an ADU fact sheet.  The purpose was to allow for development of accessory 
dwelling units that will provide more year-round rental options and home ownership opportunities.  The fact sheet 
further stated that this community housing strategy was recommended by the 2017 Housing Production Plan and the 
2018 Vision Plan.  The intent of the bylaw is to diversify the housing stock to meet community needs.  Scalise further 
stated that she was hearing concerns about short-term rentals and suggested the Planning Board may want to consider 
expressly prohibiting short-term rentals in the ADU bylaw. 
 
Degen asked if it was possible to fine property owners for renting ADUs on a short-term basis.  Idman responded that it 
is possible to establish fines.  The Building Commissioner is the enforcement officer of the zoning bylaw.  Idman stated 



 

 
PB Minutes 06/28/23                               Page 4 of 7 

 

that fines and injunctions could be used by the Building Commissioner.  Idman stated that the Building Commissioner 
could require the cooking facilities of one of the two units on the property be removed.  Bebrin stated that there are 
other mechanisms such as fees instead of fines that property owners could be assessed for using an ADU as a short-term 
rental.  The Planning Board would have to consider what an appropriate fee would be in the event a property owner 
decides to rent the ADU on a short-term basis and not for the intended long term rental purpose. 
 
Wentworth asked if it was possible for the town to create an online database related to ADUs in which property owners 
could upload leases or letters of vacancy for the town to monitor.  Michaels stated that the requirement of a 12-month 
lease does prevent short-term rentals so he wonders if the requirement should remain.  Freitas said the 12-month lease 
requirement and year-round occupancy requirement are the two biggest deterrents to creating ADUs. 
 
The Planning Board discussed the lot size and dimensional regulations included in the ADU provisions.  Bebrin stated 
that a special permit from the ZBA was needed to create an ADU on a lot less than 30,000 SF.  There is no historical 
zoning of this lot size but there has been 25,000 SF and 15,000 SF lot sizes.  Bebrin also noted that the current zoning 
bylaw only references setbacks for attached ADUs.  There is no mention of other dimensional requirements such as 
coverage or height and no mention of setbacks or dimensional requirements for detached buildings.  The bylaw refers to 
“conforming” setbacks for the zoning district pursuant to Table 2, Area Regulations, of the zoning bylaw.  Brewster 
zoning has setbacks on a per lot (not district) basis that refers to when the lot was created.  Bebrin said this speaks to 
the complexity of creating an ADU because those interested must research the history of their lot and relevant 
regulations at the time the lot was created.  Idman suggested language to clarify this section of the bylaw by stating that 
ADUs shall be subject to the dimensional requirements of the property.  Wentworth agreed and stated that there were 
already dimensional requirements in place for lots so additional specific language for ADUs is not needed and could 
create more limitations.  Michaels agreed and stated that the language as drafted adds to the complexity of creating an 
ADU.  Freitas stated that the restriction of a special permit invites neighbors to oppose a project with or without reason.  
He stated there should be more opportunity for ADUs by right. 
 
Vanessa Greene, Tracy Lane, a member of the Housing Partnership and the Affordable Housing Trust stated that there 
are existing regulations elsewhere in the zoning bylaw that do not need to be included in the ADU regulations as it 
makes it seem more restrictive.  Greene stated that allowing ADUs by right with the right process and regulations would 
be beneficial.  She noted that residents may feel intimated when having to appear before a town board or committee 
and therefore may opt not to pursue a permit. 
 
Michaels inquired about the 30,000 SF lot size requirement.  He stated he believed the requirement was a “guard rail” 
and asked whether it was needed.  Kalinick responded that the 30,000 SF lot size requirement was a compromise when 
the bylaw was originally drafted.  At the time, there were some Planning Board members who wanted to see a 15,000 SF 
or 20,000 SF requirement and others who wanted to see a 40,000 SF lot size requirement so they compromised at 
30,000 SF.  Kalinick stated that as Idman previously mentioned this requirement is not aligned with other sections of the 
zoning bylaw.  Kalinick stated that she is impressed with the Planning Board’s open mindedness and thoughtfulness in 
revising the bylaw.  Bebrin stated that the Planning Board needs to consider at what point or what size it is appropriate 
to require a special permit. A special permit requires a public hearing and allows for public comment on the project.  
Idman stated that it is difficult to find lots in Brewster that are 30,000 SF because that size has not been required 
through zoning.  Abramsen stated that by right ADUs are a tool used in the West to streamline the ADU process.  
Manion commented that lot size was the first hurdle she faced with her ADU project as her lot is 29,845 SF. 
 
The Planning Board discussed size requirements for ADUs. Currently, the bylaw requires the ADU to be the lesser of 40% 
of habitable space of the main house or 900 SF.  Idman noted that “habitable” is not defined in the zoning bylaw but 
under state building code excludes bathrooms, halls, closets, and utility spaces.  The percentage approach advantages 
larger existing homes and can be confusing and difficult to calculate.  Idman provided examples of the 40% ADU size 
requirement.  He noted a 40% ADU within a 1,500 SF dwelling is approximately 400 SF.  A 40% ADU detached or in 
addition to a 1,500 SF dwelling is approximately 600 SF. If an ADU is proposed as an addition or detached building, the 



 

 
PB Minutes 06/28/23                               Page 5 of 7 

 

existing dwelling would need to be 2,250 SF for a 900 SF ADU.  If the existing dwelling is less than this size an addition to 
the existing dwelling would need to be created to create an ADU of 900 SF.  Idman asked the Planning Board to consider 
whether ADU size requirements need to include both a percentage calculation and size requirement.  Michaels stated 
that the 40% requirement is complicated, but it was probably included to make sure the ADU fits with the character of 
the main dwelling. Michaels agreed that larger existing homes receive an advantage.  Michaels stated he thought there 
should be less guard rails for ADUs within homes or above garages because these spaces already exist.  Bebrin stated 
that having a flat size like 900 SF could help with development costs and may allow people to access pre-existing plans.  
Bebrin noted that when the bylaw was originally drafted there was a concern that there would be rampant development 
and that was one of the reasons for the size restrictions. 
 
The Planning Board discussed ADU design.  Idman noted that the bylaw states that an ADU must be “clearly 
subordinate” to the main home.  Idman asked whether the focus should be on keeping the property as single-family 
residential in nature.  In Brewster, accessory buildings with bedrooms are allowed without any design criteria.  The 
“clearly subordinate” criteria can challenge the Building Commissioner.  Stead asked if the design would be reviewed by 
the OKH District Committee. Idman stated that if the property was in the Historic District, it would be reviewed but their 
focus is preservation not necessarily architectural design.  Wentworth suggested that with an ADU size such as 1000 SF 
plans could be kept and shared with applicants to save on design costs.  Abramsen stated that ADU Resource Centers 
she works with out West do have standard plans available to those looking to construct an ADU.  It is a tool used to help 
reduce the costs of creating an ADU.  Freitas stated that ADUs would be less restrictive if a standard size was used.  
Abramsen stated that one of the pre-existing plans could be created with universal design principles. 
 
The Planning Board discussed special permits for ADUs. Bebrin stated that currently the zoning bylaw requires a special 
permit for an ADU if the lot is less than 30,000 SF or is in the Herring River Watershed, DCPC (Zone II and Pleasant Bay 
Watershed).  Water overlays occupy the entire south part of Brewster.  Zoning in the DCPC includes ground water 
protection provisions for nitrogen.  Idman noted that an applicant building in the DCPC goes through an administrative 
review with the Health and Building Departments in addition to the special permit process.  Bebrin asked the Planning 
Board to consider whether they should be the special permit granting authority.  The ZBA currently reviews special 
permits for ADUs.  She also asked the Planning Board to consider whether unique special permit standards should be 
adopted for ADUs.  Historically, lot sizes in Brewster have been 15,000 SF and 25,000 SF.   
 
Michaels stated that about 40% of Brewster is covered by the DCPC.  The Planning Board discussed whether it was 
necessary to require a zoning special permit for an ADU.  They discussed the additional costs associated with a special 
permit and the additional time and resources applicants had to expend.  Idman stated that he has seen proposed ADUs 
not make it past administrative review because standards cannot be met.  Idman also noted that the DCPC is made up of 
both a groundwater protection overlay and an estuarian resource. Taylor stated that she believes the 30,000 SF lot size 
requirement should be changed.  If the Board of Health is already reviewing the nitrogen and DCPC requirements, 
additional review by the ZBA does not seem necessary.  Idman stated that in 2021 there was a zoning change that made 
the nitrogen loading regulation applicable to all development in the DCPC.  Taylor also stated that setback requirements 
need to be reviewed and it may be easier to have one set of setbacks for ADUs.   
 
Scalise stated that when the original bylaw was drafted the water protection provisions were put in as guard rails.  In the 
last 5 years, Brewster has not seen ADU development in these districts causing issues with water.  Hillis-Dineen stated 
that there was fear of rapid development of tiny houses in 2018 that did not happen.  Michaels mentioned recently 
enacted state law related to Title 5 and suggested the Planning Board may want to pause on water protection provisions 
to see what towns do in response to the new law. 
 
The Planning Board discussed the option the zoning bylaw currently allows to create accessory buildings with bedrooms 
without any size restrictions.  Idman stated that the accessory buildings could not have cooking facilities.  Freitas stated 
that people would still be able to rent them short-term as most renters would not care about the cooking facilities.  
Bebrin stated that there will always be bad actors, but the Planning Board cannot draft to restrict bad acts.   Abramsen 



 

 
PB Minutes 06/28/23                               Page 6 of 7 

 

asked the Planning Board to consider bumpers for short-term rentals while widening the path for ADUs to be more 
easily created. 
 
The Planning Board discussed enforcement and administration of ADUs.  Enforcement is handled by the Building 
Commissioner.  An annual affidavit is required but there is no existing tracking or registration mechanism.  In some 
cases, a certificate of occupancy or building permit may not be required under the state building code.  Bebrin noted 
that there is a 20-permit cap per year which has not been reached to date.  There is also reference to other laws and 
regulations such as Title 5 and the state building code in the zoning bylaw.  Idman stated that part of the purpose 
statement could be that ADUs are not intended for short-term rentals even though that will be difficult to enforce.  
Michaels asked whether it was necessary to require an annual affidavit if it was not being tracked.  Idman responded 
that removing the affidavit requirement does not mean that there is no zoning enforcement.  He referenced Orleans as 
a town which had an affidavit requirement at one time but no longer has that requirement. Idman suggested that there 
are mechanical challenges with the current affidavits. He stated that if Brewster is going to require affidavits, the 
Building Commissioner should have discretion as the enforcement agent as to what should be included in the affidavit. 
Idman also stated that there is no good tracking mechanism right now at the front end because ADUs are a zoning 
concept and not a building concept.  For purposes of the zoning bylaw, a zoning permit could be issued for ADUs and 
tracked.  Wentworth stated that the current affidavit system is not working.  He stated that tracking ADUs is important 
not just for enforcement but for informational purposes so it can be determined how many exist and if they’re working. 
 
Scalise stated that she reviewed how many units were created each year since the bylaw’s inception in 2018. She 
reviewed special permits, building permits, and certificates of occupancy for accessory apartments and ADUs.  The 
following units were created: 2019-6; 2020-7; 2021-5; 2022-2; and 2023 (to date)-5. These were not necessarily built but 
were permitted.  Kalinick stated that she is hopeful that with revisions to the ADU bylaw, to make it more accessible and 
easier to use, more units will be created. She stated that she does not believe a cap is necessary.  Taylor agreed that 
there should not be a cap.  She asked about e-permitting options. 
 
Draper stated that he is pleased with the steps Brewster is taking to create new housing including working on revisions 
to the ADU bylaw and the opening of the housing complex on Brewster Road.  Draper stated that in addition to finding 
new ways to create housing, the town needs to find a way to attack the problem of short-term rentals.  He asked the 
Planning Board to consider options such as requiring rental properties to be registered so that entities could not be 
allowed to own more than one rental property.  He mentioned higher taxes on properties where the owners do not 
actually live on the property.  Draper suggested community preservation funds or other sources could be used to 
purchase deed restrictions. 
 
Greene stated that she thought accessory commercial dwelling units (ACDUs) should be handled separately and in a 
separate bylaw from ADUs.  She thought the audience for ACDUs was different.  Bebrin stated that the current focus of 
the Planning Board is on revisions to the ADU provisions of the bylaw and ACDUs will be considered later. 
 
Bebrin reviewed the next steps including a draft revision to the ADU provisions and additional listening sessions to 
discuss that draft.  The Planning Board will also work on targeted outreach. 
 
8:42 PM APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
Approval of Meeting Minutes:  June 14, 2023. 
The Board reviewed the June 14, 2023 meeting minutes.  Motion by Degen to Approve June 14, 2023 Meeting Minutes, 
as amended.  Second by Michaels.   Roll call vote:  Taylor-yes; Freitas-yes; Hillis-Dineen-abstained; Degen-yes; 
Michaels-yes; Wentworth-yes; and Bebrin-yes. Vote: 6-0-1. 
 
8:44 PM  COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Degen summarized the Select Board meeting of June 26th which included discussion with the School Committee on 
appropriating special education stabilization funds, appointment of liaisons, announcement of the new Fire Department 



 

 
PB Minutes 06/28/23                               Page 7 of 7 

 

contract, discussion on state regulations on Title 5 effective July 7th, and feedback on the Ponds Summit.  Wentworth 
stated that the Vision Planning Committee (VPC) met on June 26th and welcomed member Fran Schofield back. The VPC 
discussed outreach materials and a timeline for outreach to the public.  Deadlines were also discussed in preparation for 
the Fall Town Meeting.  The next VPC meeting is on July 17th.  The Bay Property Planning Committee was presented with 
the data from the first public forum and survey.  A total of 1500 people participated between the forum and survey.  
Themes such as coastal protection, passive recreation, community center and community programming, housing, and 
re-use of structures were part of the responses.  The committee is planning a second forum on Saturday, August 5th.  The 
community pool has been opened. 
 
8:50 PM FOR YOUR INFORMATION 
The Planning Board received notice of recent decisions issued by the Harwich Planning Board.  The Select Board recently 
reorganized and Ned Chatelain is the new liaison to the Planning Board.  Bebrin thanked Hoffmann for her service as the 
liaison and for all her work on the Planning Board. 
 
8:51 PM  MATTERS NOT REASONABLY ANTICIPATED BY THE CHAIR 
None. 
 
Motion by Michaels to Adjourn. Second by Freitas.   Roll call vote: Taylor-yes; Michaels-yes; Degen-yes; Hillis-Dineen-
yes: Freitas-yes; Wentworth-yes; and Bebrin-yes. Vote:  7-0-0.  The meeting adjourned at 8:52 PM.  
 
Next Planning Board Meeting Date: July 12, 2023. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Lynn St. Cyr, Senior Department Assistant, Planning 



 

FOR YOUR INFORMATION 















ADU LISTENING SESSION
Brewster  P lann ing Board

June 28 ,  2023



MEETING TOPICS/ 
PUBLIC INPUT

• Discuss Existing Zoning Bylaw

• Discuss General ADU Criteria

• Discuss potential amendments

• General observations, 
experiences, comments & 
suggestions

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 2



WHAT IS AN ADU?
• Regulated by zoning

• Accessory single- family dwelling unit

• Accessory use to main home- not independent

• Self-contained living (cooking, sanitary, sleeping) 

facilities

• Same lot as main dwelling

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 3



EXISTING ADU ZONING

•  S i ze :  l esser  of  40% main  home or  900 
sq  f t

• Can be a t tached ,  w i th in  or  detached
• Owner  occupancy  req ’d- 12  mos .
• Lease  te rm 12  mos .
• Addi t iona l  park ing spaces  req ’d
• No more  than 2  bedrooms
• Max 2  dwe l l ing  un i t s  per  lo t ,  inc l .  ADU
• Annua l  ADU permi t  cap- 20
• No board ing/  lodg ing
• Des ign subord inate  to  ma in  house
• ZBA approva l  req ’d in  water  protec t ion 

over lay  d i s t r i c t s  and on lo t s  >30 ,000 s f

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 4



TYPICAL CONSIDERATIONS-
ZONING

• “Purpose” clause (intent)

• Owner occupancy

• Tenancy

• Lot size/ dimensional regulations

• ADU Size

• Design requirements

• Special permit?

• Enforcement/ administration

• Annual permit cap

• Reference to related laws and regs (health, 

bldg, etc)

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 5



“PURPOSE” CLAUSE
• Brewster ADU Zoning does not currently have one 
• Inclusion could bolster year-round housing intent 

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 6



OWNER OCCUPANCY

• Required currently for continuous 12 mo. period

(either unit)

• No express bona fide absence clause

• Part time residents can’t have an ADU under 

current language

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 7



TENANCY

• Must be 12 mo. lease currently

• Does year-round housing = 12 mo. lease?

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 8



LOT SIZE/ 
DIMENSIONAL REGS

• ZBA Special Permit for less than 30000 sq ft lot-

(historical zoning in Brewster was 25k or 15k)

• ZBL currently only references setbacks for attached 

ADUs (not other dimensional reqs. like coverage, height, 

etc. or detached buildings)

• Refers to ‘conforming’ setback for district (ZBL Table 2)

• Brewster Zoning has unique setbacks- “per lot” not 

district- back to when lot was created

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 9



ADU SIZE
• 40% habitable space of main house or 900 sq ft, whichever is 

less

• ‘Habitable’ not defined under the ZBL- under SBC excludes 

bathrooms, halls, closets, utility spaces

• % approach advantages a) larger existing homes, and b) can 

be confusing and difficult to calculate. 

• Examples:

• 40% ADU WITHIN an existing 1500 sq ft dwelling= approx. 

400 sq ft ADU allowed

• 40% ADU within a DETACHED building accessory or 

ADDITION to an existing 1500 sq ft dwelling= approx. 600 

sq ft ADU

• Existing 2250 sq ft home necessary to get max 900 sq ft 

ADU based on 40% rule (if ADU proposed as an addition 

or detached building)

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 1 0



DESIGN
• “Clearly subordinate” to main house

• Is this a use or design provision?

• Focus on single-family residential character of 

property?

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 1 1



ADU SPECIAL PERMIT
• Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) approval req’d:

• Lots less than 30,000 sq ft

• Herring River Watershed

• DCPC (Zone II & Pleasant Bay Watershed)

• Water overlays occupy entire south part of Town 

• See GIS map: 

https://www.mapsonline.net/brewsterma/index.htm

l

• DCPC zoning includes groundwater protection 

provisions re: Nitrogen

• Planning Board SPGA?

• Adopt unique Special Permit standards for ADUs?

• 15k & 25k sq ft historic lot sizes under zoning

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 1 2



ENFORCEMENT/
ADMINISTRATION

• Building Commissioner

• Annual affidavit required (currently ZBL 

prescribes content)

• No existing tracking or registration mechanism

• In some rare cases, a CO or construction permit 

under the SBC might not be required 

• Existing permit cap of 20/ year

• Haven’t been close to approaching

• Other laws and regulations are referenced in the 

ZBL (Title 5, SBC, etc.)

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 1 3



GENERAL 
OBSERVATIONS, 
EXPERIENCES,
COMMENTS & 
SUGGESTIONS

• THANK YOU! YOUR 

INPUT IS VALUED!

J U N E  2 8 ,  2 0 2 3 A D U  L I S T E N I N G  S E S S I O N - B R E W S T E R  P L  B D 1 4


	Agenda, 7/12/23
	Major Stormwater Management Permit 2023-26
	Approval Not Required 2023-06
	Brewster Historical Commission Discussion
	Draft Meeting Minutes dated 6/28/23
	FYI

